WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
February 12, 2007
Council Chamber
CONVENE:
PRESENT:

9:06 a.m.
Councilmember Michelle Anderson, Chair
Councilmember Michael P. Victorino, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa, Member
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member (In 9:11 a.m.)
Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Member
Councilmember Bill Kauakea Medeiros, Non-Member (Out 11:34 a.m.)

STAFF:

David Raatz, Legislative Attorney
Kim Willenbrink, Legislative Analyst
Clarita Balala, Committee Secretary
Leinaala Kihm, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Bill Kauakea Medeiros

ADMIN.:

OTHERS:

PRESS:

Jeffrey K. Eng, Acting Director, Department of Water Supply
Eric Yamashige, Deputy Director, Department of Water Supply
Brian T. Moto, Acting Corporation Counsel, Department of the Corporation
Counsel
Edward S. Kushi Jr., Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel
John V. Duey
David DeLeon
Mercer "Chubby" Vicens
(11) additional attendees

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
Harry Eagar, The Maui News

CHAIR ANDERSON: .. . (gavel) . .. Good morning, the Water Resources Committee meeting
of February 12 is now in session. With us this morning is Vice-Chair Mike Victorino,
Member Joe ...
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Good morning. Member Joe Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Member Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Bill's not a Member of our Committee but he's sitting
welcome that, and Member Gladys Baisa.

III

and we

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Member Danny Mateo will be coming in shortly. From the Department
we have Water Director Jeffrey Eng. Good morning. Thanks for being here. And from
Corporation Counsel we have Ed Kushi and Corporation Counsel Brian Moto. Staff this
morning, we have Legal Analyst David Raatz, Legislative Analyst Kim Willenbrink, and
our secretary, Clarita Balala.
Okay, Members, on our agenda this morning we have the Water Supply Rules and also
the Special Counsel Report. I'm sorry I have a cough drop in my mouth so please bear
with me. We're going to open up with testimony this morning. We have one testifier,
Mr. John Duey, and I don't see what you're testifying on but let her rip .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. DUEY: Good morning. I'll make it short. You have a big line of testifiers this morning.
Good morning, Committee Chair Anderson and Committee Members. I'm John V.
Duey, lao Valley landowner. I just want to take this opportunity to thank this, this
Committee and the Council of the whole for passing the resolution supporting the
designation of the Na Wai Eha surface water management area as stated in the State
Water Code, 174C, that states that certain things happened or are happening or will
happen this can be put into effect. I thought the PowerPoint presentation that you were
able to see two weeks ago by Delwyn Oki of the USGS was very good and very
informative. This resolution is just the first step in the designation process as you heard
at your last meeting. The DLNR Chair proceeds .. .if the DLNR Chair proceeds with the
process, there will be many more steps to. . .many more steps following, following,
including public meetings and et cetera. Designation will help us get mauka to makai
streamflows, but the short range goal should be condemnation and acquisition of the
watershed and ditch system. As a public resource, water should not be allowed to
continue as a private enterprise, and oh yes, don't forget storage.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Duey. Any questions for the testifier, Members? Seeing
none. Thanks very much.
MR. DUEY: Thank you very much and good morning.
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.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay, Members, we do have posted on our agenda the need for an
executive session this morning due to the sensitive nature of the Special Counsel Report
that we will be reviewing or discussing. It has been transmitted to the Council from the
attorney as attorney-client privilege and that constrains us from discussing it in public.
And because there are. . .' cause I think it's important that the new Members and also
those of us who aren't new Members have a review and an update. I'm going to request
that prior to going into the Water Supply Rules that we move the second item on our
agenda up, WR-19, so that we can discuss that first.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

ITEM NO. 19

SPECIAL COUNSEL FOR WATER-RELATED MATTERS (C.C. No.
05-42)

CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair, ... Members. So in that regard we're going to have to
call an executive session to consult with legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining
to the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities of the County, the Council,
and the Committee, in order to do that. . .to meet Section 92-5 of Hawaii Revised
Statutes.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: So moved, Madam Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Members. We're gonna take a brief recess so we can set up
for executive session. And for those who are watching and in the galley this morning, I
anticipate this not being more than a half hour, but you never know, so please bear with
us. We appreciate it. This meeting is in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

9:11 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:11 a.m.

CHAIR ANDERSON: .. . (gavel) . .. Sorry, Members, the meeting's back m seSSIOn.
neglected to call a vote.

I

VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So all those in favor of going into executive session please indicate by
saymg aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Those opposed? Thank you, Members.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Baisa, Mateo,
Victorino, and Chair Anderson.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

and

Pontanilla,

Vice-Chair

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

EXECUTIVE SESSION.

CHAIR ANDERSON: We will now recess and go into executive session ... . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:12 a.m.

(THE WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE ENTERED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT
9:16A.M AND ENDED AT 10:42A.M)
RECONVENE:

11:02 a.m.

CHAIR ANDERSON: .. . (gavel) . .. Water Resources Committee meeting of February 12 is
now reconvened. Thank you, Members, for that executive session. Apologize to the
public for being in closed session for so long but we had important issues to discuss.
ITEM NO. 1

WATER SUPPLY RULES (e.c. Nos. 05-46 & 06-228)

CHAIR ANDERSON: So we're gonna start up with the review of the Water Supply Rules.
We're going to work off the memo dated October 11, 2006. It's about a quarter of an
inch from the back of your binders, Members. It's a memo from Mr. Kushi. Mr. Kushi's
staff along with he has codified the existing Board of Water Supply Rules and
Regulations so that it's in a format that we can adopt as an ordinance. Everything that is
underlined in this draft are changes, Members, and for new Members, we use the term
"Ramseyer". Ramseyer format means anything that you delete is in parentheses and
anything that you add is underlined. So we're gonna be working off of that and I want to
also draw your attention, Members, to two memos that we recently received regarding
our work on these draft rules or the draft ordinance. One is from Public Works
Development Services Administration and they've made some very specific
recommendations. And then we also have from the Fire Department their review and
recommendations. One is dated ... DSA is dated January 31 8t and Fire Department is dated
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February 1S\ 2007. So instead of going directly to these two items and addressing them, I
think the best way for us to do this is and I've kind of earmarked them in my own rules so
that if we get to a point in the rules where these items are brought up, then we'll stop and
discuss them at that time. But I think just for the purposes of continuity and as a
progressive learning session, basically, because many of us have never looked at these
rules, I think the best way to go is just from the start and just go right on through.
Now, if there is anyone here who would like to testify on this item, WR-1, Water Supply
Rules, now is your chance come forward. Seeing none. Okay, Members, I'm going to
close public testimony with no objection.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Members. Has everyone found their place? We have back
with us Mr. Jeffrey Eng, the Director from the Department of Water Supply, and his
Deputy Director, Eric Yamashige. Thank you both for being here. And I think what
we're going to do because Mr. Kushi has been intimately involved in redrafting these ...
this codified version and as counsel to the Board of Water Supply I think he's probably
the one that's most intimately involved with the rules so we're going to have him lead us
through it. But I would request that Mr. Eng and Mr. Yamashige, if you have any
comments to make as we go through, please just raise your hand and we'll stop and let
you make a comment, okay. So, Members, the first section has to do with the purpose,
and Mr. Kushi, maybe you might want to explain. He's taken out the whole existing
language for the purpose and, and putting a whole new one.
Now, Ijust want to caution everybody. We have two more chapters that are still to come
that are not included here and we're also going to have the source of all these rules
identified at the end of each provision or chapter or wherever it may be appropriate. At
the end of legislation or whatever provision, generally it's within each chapter, when the
chapter was adopted by the Board of Water Supply and then when the County Council
adopted it or approved it. And then if any amendments were made, and I think it's
important for us to realize as we go through these when these rules were adopted because
we're looking at, you know, Mr. Kushi, what is it? A couple decades worth of rules all
put together now. And so what might have been appropriate in 1977 may not be
appropriate now.
So, Members, as we go through these this is the way I intend to do this. We'll take each
section, each provision within each section one at a time and then I'll stop and see if
there's any comments. This is going to be our first pass through, okay. And please, if
you have any comments to make, don't hesitate because now is the time for us to discuss
and make changes if we feel it's appropriate.
So with that I'm going to open it up to you, Mr. Kushi.
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MR. KUSHI: Yes. Okay. Madam Chair, let me kind of clarify where we are right now. I'm
ready, willing, and somewhat prepared to go line by line or section by section. But for
the Members and your information, you've had comments from the Department of Public
Works, DSA, in your binders. You've had a comment from Fire Department. The Board
of Water Supply has been reviewing what you are reviewing and they will come out with
their comments, hopefully, by April. But I must say this that the Department has not, to
my knowledge, have had a chance to comment on these changes and I'm not sure what
their schedule is, but so my comments will reflect just my experience in dealing with
these rules from the Department and Board perspective. I believe that this body should
hear from the Water Department staff also. I leave that for you to inquire with them.
That being said, if I can start, Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, and thank you for clarifying that, Mr. Kushi. I meant to say that.
Yeah, we did send the rules out to the Board and asked for their review and they have a
subcommittee. Mr. Kushi is sitting on it to review the rules and we've given them an
extension until April something. So we'll be hearing back from them. And Mr. Eng, you
know, we would be most appreciative if you would like to give us any kind of written
comments that you think are appropriate if you and your staff have the time to do that and
I know the engineers probably use these rules more, you know, on a daily basis than
anybody, and they might have some comments that you'd like to share, too. So until you
can do that, any verbal comments you have to make along the way we're very
appreciative of.
MR. ENG: Madam Chair and Committee Members, that's exactly our intent. We are holding
meetings with our staff members in the Department. It's important for us to understand
their comments and incorporate as much as we can because we're administering this
document on a daily basis and we're hoping that we can also resolve a lot of conflicts that
the public is currently experiencing. So, yeah, I really view this as a group participation.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Eng. Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: So you want me to proceed, Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Maybe you might want to just give us a brief explanation of why
you made this change.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah. Okay. We've ... referring to the first-CHAIR ANDERSON: The section ...
MR. KUSHI: --page of the draft, Section 14.01.020 on the purpose?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes. Thank you.
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MR. KUSHI: I took out the existing language and I put in language that I must have found from
someplace else ... from one of your newer bills, but I believe it's broader, encompasses
more concerns, and it deals with the entire water system on a more fully ... full basis,
more encompassing. Not so much substance but stylistic.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Well, I'm a firm believer that we're in a public meeting and we
need to make what we're talking about public. So I'm gonna read ...
MR. KUSHI: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I'm gonna read the language that's underscored, which is what we will
potentially be adopting. The unique geographic, geological, and geophysical composition
of the County when considered in combination with the increasing demand for water,
necessitates regulation of the water resources within the County to provide for domestic,
agricultural, and commercial needs. The intent of this article is to insure a just and fair
distribution of water to the people of the County within the limits of the water resources
and systems available. Preservation and maintenance of water services to existing users
without undue reduction in amount of water received or services rendered must be
considered in addition to the interests of persons desirous of new water services. It is the
purpose of this article, therefore, to provide direction, guidance, and procedure for the
resolution of problems regarding water services before such problems arise, and to
clarify, codify, and establish policies for the Department of Water Supply of the County
of Maui.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, if I may? In the January 30th , '07, correspondence from Ralph
Nagamine of the Public Works Department to Mr. Milton Arakawa in commenting on the
rules.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes.
MR. KUSHI: It's in your binders. They, they ... they're requesting that one sentence be revised
and it goes on in the middle of, let me see, the second full sentence under Purpose. They
want that resource of the intent of this article. They want that to read as follows, "The
intent of this article is to insure a just and fair distribution of water to the people of the
County within the limits of the water resources and systems available."
CHAIR ANDERSON: No. That's the, that's the, that's the section they're changing, Mr. Kushi.
Go down to the next. .. the box is what they want to change it, that-MR. KUSHI: Oh, right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --that's existing.
MR. KUSHI: Right, right.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: And they want to change that to ... go ahead, I'll let you read.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah. They want to change that to read as follows, "The intent of this article is to
insure a just and fair distribution of water to the people of the County considering the
availability of the County's water resources and systems."
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, Members, do you all have .. .I think it probably be helpful if
you have side by side a copy of this DSA memo, January 31, 2007, so you can compare
that with the section that we're looking at. It's easier if you have it side by side. It's so
difficult to flip back and forth. Of course, that's up to you however you want to do it.
Has everyone found that? Okay. Basically, what this does is it makes the purpose
inclusive rather exclusive of private systems. The way the language reads currently it
includes private water systems. And I just want to draw to your attention that up until
1998, the Board of Water Supply and the Department of Water Supply specifically had
regulatory review over private water systems. Other private water. . .in other words if
you wanted to do a private water system, you had to come to the County and have them
approve it, and the purpose of that was for consistency. And many times private water
systems eventually get taken over by the County or they fail and the County has to take
them over.
In 1998, David Craddick came to the Council and requested that the regulatory oversight
for private systems be taken away from the Department, and for, you know, whatever
reason it was. Whatever reason he gave at that time, the Council agreed. And so now
there's very little oversight within the Department for private systems. But I'm not so
sure that that's something that we want to continue doing. We might want to put that
back in place because, you know, we had the experience of the Maui Ranch Estates
where they had a private system which failed. The residents and the County ended up
taking it over, and you know, back then there was still that regulatory oversight. So
that's the difference there in that change and I think it's something that we need to
consider and maybe now is not the time. If the Department would like to make a
comment about that right now? I think maybe the Members and myself could benefit
from that if you have a comment, Mr. Eng.
MR. ENG: You know, as far as the appropriateness of the revisions recommended by DSA, it
does fit better currently our definition of what we're trying to administer which is our
water system. But I do understand the interest of this body in that, you know, there could
be some concerns down the road with private systems, and you know, it is a burden on
our part to regulate them and to review what they're doing. But I personally don't have a
problem, you know, requiring them to design and build their standards to minimally the
County of Maui's engineering standards 'cause you really never know down the road
what's going to happen if they get in a jam. So it's just something to consider at this time
is that I'd be open to putting certain conditions on private systems.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you for that, Mr. Eng. Members, any questions or comments?
Okay. Let's move along, Mr. Kushi. Thank you.
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MR. KUSHI: Okay, Madam Chair. The next one is the Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Maybe Mr. Kushi can just try to
respond and just on the item that we just completed. Somehow that word "just and fair
distribution" just kind of like gets me because it's just and fair only if the system has the
adequate capability of providing. So is that just and fair?
MR. KUSHI: Oh, you gotta repeat that question, please?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I forgot what I said ... . (laughter) . .. The, the verbiage being
used, you know, and it's just a carryover "to insure that a just and fair distribution" and
when you continue reading down that so-called just and fair distribution to the people of
the County as long as it's within the limits of the resource and the system. So if we leave
those words in "just and fair", the question will be just and fair to whom? Is it the
Department who will determine what is just and fair because it is indicative of the
limitations of the resource? So is there a way of taking out that "just and fair" and still
coming out with an equitable intent? We don't have to discuss it now - food for thought.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Mr. Mateo, 'cause it does say considering the availability or
within the limits of the water resources in systems available. So it is ... there is a qualifier
in there, but I see your point.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Actually, I just wanted to point that out because it kind of
throws me for another question.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Put a circle around that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Madam Chair, question.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: By what process are we going to make these changes? We're
going to go through this and then come back and approve each one, one by one, or how
are we going to do this?
CHAIR ANDERSON: As we go through this, I want you to make comments where you might
have concerns or questions just as Mr. Mateo just did, and you know, if it's something
that is a broader issue or something that we can deal with right now, we'll try to deal with
it. If it' s something that's more philosophical and looks at the broader picture, then we'll
just circle it and we'll discuss it next time we pass through. And the intention I think
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would be that as we go through these, we'll try to work on a consensus basis to
changes that we might make. I will have to discuss this with legal staff because I'm
I'm not positive we can do it that way since these are existing rules and regulations
still have the force and effect of law unless it's in conflict with the Charter change,
that's basically line of authority.

any
not,
that
and

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And since we've taken a break, I just want to add one more thing. We're
going to be getting into the definitions pretty soon here and we're going to look for
consistency. There's comments that Mr. Nagamine made about inconsistency in the
definitions. Then again I think that's because things were done over such a long period
of time and not, you know, in a comprehensive way - just kind of one set of rules here
and another set of rules there. So we will go through this and make sure that the
definitions without changing the intent and purpose of the definitions in ... as they relate
to this legislation before us, we'll try to make them consistent with the definitions that we
already have in the Code, which would be found in Title 18 and Title 19. Okay. Thank
you for that. Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Yes. Madam Chair, moving on to the next section entitled "Administration". Just
some revision saying that the Director may delegate duties to other personnel within the
Department. The previous Code says other County personnel so you had a problem
there. It also adds another sentence saying that the Director of Water Supply may, may
promulgate rules and regulations pursuant to the Hawaii Administrative Procedures Act,
meaning after these rules ... after these ... after you've codified the existing rules into
ordinance form, they become part of your Maui County Code. And to change those Code
provisions you would have to have a new ordinance - you have to amend your ordinance.
Look at this as a Building Code or a Fire Code or a Subdivision Code. Now, the Director
as the Administrative Head of the Department we're saying that he may establish
Administrative Rules to clarify, to implement, to enforce these Codes. That procedure is
a separate procedure. It's pursuant to Hawaii State statutes. They go through public
hearings, then they have input from the public hearings, then the usual procedure is that
they're submitted to the Administrative Executive Head of the County's, I mean the
Mayor, and the Mayor signs or doesn't sign off on it. Previously, that procedure was sort
of semi-used with the Board of Water Supply Rules. But as it is, the Board of Water
Supply would not be involved in this strict Hawaii State statutes. We, we put it in for
your suggest, I mean for your consideration. Because there may be some gaps that, you
know, are not filled up by these Code provisions.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you for that, Mr. Kushi. Members, this is going to be a big thing
for us to come to terms with because basically what we have here are rules and, and some
of the rules that are here may not be appropriate as an ordinance. They may, you know,
legislatively we're looking at policy. We try to set policy in the ordinance and then
implementing that policy is done by the Administrative Rules. So it depends on how far
we want to go and I might suggest, Members, that you look at Title 18 because that's the
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subdivision ordinance for the County and I kind of see this as a parallel. There are
certain rules and regulations within the subdivision ordinance that I guess you would
term a rule or a regulation, but the Council adopted it specifically as an ordinance
because they wanted everybody to have, you know, this procedure to follow. And if it's
in the Code, it's easy for everybody to find. It carries the weight of law, not that the
Administrative Rules don't, but it basically effectuates the policy that the Council has
adopted. So there may be things in these rules that we're looking at, Members, that we
may want to leave up to the Director and let them adopt Administrative Rules that
implement the policy that we essentially adopt. And I know this is confusing - it's
confusing for me who's been at it for almost ten years to be talking about rules because
that's what they really are when the Council really doesn't deal with rules. So I know
Mr. Kushi is having a hard time with it, too, so just to clarify that.
The other thing I want to bring up .. . (change tape, start IE) . .. is the Board of Water
Supply adopted rules for the Department. Those rules were required to be approved by
the Council. So we always have to look at the, you know, the hierarchy of authority. The
Director or the Department recommended rule changes to the Board. The Board adopted
or didn't adopt the rules and if they did adopt them for or approved them for adoption,
they then had to bring them to the Council for the Council to approve it. So that's
another way of looking at it. And, and there's nothing in the Administrative Procedures
Act that would prevent us from using that same scenario. Is that correct, Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: If you do it by ordinance, you say. . .I would suggest you say that the
Administrative Rules be established and passed pursuant to Chapter 91 or 92, provided
however the rules are reviewed by the Board of Water Supply or I would ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Or the Council?
MR. KUSHI: I would, well, again, the Council is not an agency within the purview of the HRS
statute and there is a question whether or not the Council should get involved in
Administrative Rules.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Even though they did previously?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, but that was by Charter.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Pardon me?
MR. KUSHI: That was by ... through the Charter provisions.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, the Charter previously required the Council to-MR. KUSHI: Right, right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --to approve all Board of Water Supply Rules?
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MR. KUSHI: Right, after it went to the Mayor.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I see. So that's something that we might look at?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, yeah, yeah. Oh, but definitely I don't see a problem with the Board of
Water Supply.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and we adopted them through resolution, not through ordinance, or
we approved them through resolution, correct?
MR. KUSHI: Previously, correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes. Okay. So it wouldn't necessarily have to be an ordinance. It could
just be a resolution saying, you know, and that gives the Council, which is a public body,
it gives us a chance to have a public hearing, gives the public a chance to come and speak
their mind on it. There's also ... the way Mr. Kushi has it right now it just says the
Director may promulgate rules and regulations. We could also change that to say that the
rules have to go through the Board of Water Supply for their review and
recommendation.
MR. KUSHI: Right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: My only comment to that, Madam Chair, is that if the Council's going to be the
final say to approve the Administrative Rules, what's the process, I mean what's the use
of doing rules just to amend the ordinance because you're going to hear it again?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Say that again.
MR. KUSHI: I mean if, if the whole scheme of the Administrative Rules will have to end at this
body, why go through the rules? Just amend the ordinance.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You mean keep the rules within the ordinance and then ...
MR. KUSHI: Right, right. I mean, you know, this is going to just. .. well again, it's up to you,
but. ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, those are just different avenues for us to look at, Members.
MR. KUSHI: Right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So your point is taken. Thank you, Mr. Kushi.
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MR. KUSHI: Okay. Moving along, the next section is the meat of that. .. this first chapter's
definitions. I've.. .the bracketed items that are deleted basically are grammatical,
nothing substantive. We've add ... we've tried to add all the definitions that are found ...
would be found in the entire title so, you know, that's why all of these underlines, you
know. But again, you know, we can go one by one and we can discuss the ones that you
want but in essence we just added ... tried to bunch up all the definitions in one section.
I've reviewed the public ... comments from Public Works as far as their comments on the
definitions. I don't see a problem. If they want to make a reference to Title 18 for
consistency purposes, I don't see a problem.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Let me just be clear, Mr. Kushi. All the definitions that you have
put here or added. . .the ones that you've added were definitions that were found in
different chapters previously?
MR. KUSHI: Correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: But you didn't pull out any words and say, well, I think this word needs
to be defined and then define it?
MR. KUSHI: No, I tried not to make up too much stuff. ... (chuckled) . .. I just kind of copied
what was in the existing chapters.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So as we're going through these, Members, there may be words
in here that you don't find makes sense to you or don't give you an immediate sense of
what it means and please bring that up because it may be something that we need to
define. You'll note that district boundaries ... the definition for district boundaries, the
existing district boundaries definition, you must have gotten this from another chapter,
Mr. Kushi? The one that's currently underlined. Because of its ... we'll have to change it
somewhere else.
MR. KUSHI: Right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: The recommendation that we got from DSA is that the definition that's
used here doesn't really comport with the Hawaii Revised Statutes or our Title 19
definition for district boundaries. It mentions districts that don't really ... really exist. So
district boundaries mean boundaries of the various districts such as urban districts,
agricultural districts, rural districts, residential districts, industrial districts, hotel districts,
apartment districts, et cetera, shall be as designated by the Land Use Commission of the
State or by the Planning Commission of the County.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, correct. I believe DSA' s definition would be more appropriate if-CHAIR ANDERSON: Want to read that?
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MR. KUSHI: --they ... yeah. Their definition is they make reference to the four districts in the
State Land Use Commission, if that's the one I'm looking at.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. It's on Page 2 of their. ..
MR. KUSHI: Right, right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Could you just read that, Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: They would recommend that. .. something to the effect that there should be four
major land use districts in which all lands in the State shall be placed: urban, rural,
agricultural, and conservation.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, I'm sorry. I put you on the spot. He didn't give us the actual
language. He's just advising us to reword it.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Okay, so we'll do that with no objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah. It's kind of confusing between district boundaries and I put in some zoning
terms-CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: --which ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: So you're not certain that there may be some things in here that you
added that aren't existing definitions somewhere else in the .. .in the rules?
MR. KUSHI: Well, ... (cough) . .. excuse me, I try to take it from the existing chapters that you
have. For instance, look at Page 43 of your draft, specifically the water meter issuance
rule, under Section 14.07.030, under Definitions. I've bracketed Ramseyer format a lot
of the terms there and then placed it in this section we're talking about. You understand
what I've tried to do?
CHAIR ANDERSON: I can't find the existing water system where it says water system ... you
mean water system improvements?
MR. KUSHI: No. Under definitions under that chapter, bottom of. .. middle of Page 43 of the
draft?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
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MR. KUSHI: Okay. Section 14.07.030.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh. You took all of those and put them in the front.
MR. KUSHI: Right, right, right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: That's what my intent was in-CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. KUSHI: --expanding the initial definition section.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, Members, I think what we should do then is just go down and
read each one of these definitions. They may not make sense until we get through the
rules but any objection to that? Okay. Unless otherwise expressly provided in other
provisions of this article or unless plainly evident from the context with ... that a different
meaning is intended, for the purposes of this article the following words, terms, and
phrases shall be defined as follows. And you know, definitions are very important so I
think it's very important for us to ... this won't be the last time we go through this to have
a clear understanding of what the intent is. Agricultural water consumers means those
consumers actively engaged in crop product. .. production, stock raising, or dairy farming
to derive farm income on County zoned or State designated agricultural lands. Now this
is important because ag users get a different rate and maybe we could stop right here,
Mr. Eng. If you could tell us what the Department uses in determining whether or not
someone qualifies for an ag rate.
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, currently because we do have the ag rate this is ... can be somewhat
problematic for us. It's a pretty broad definition currently as far as being engaged in
some kind of crop production, stock raising. It probably allows for considerable
loopholes. We recently met with the Maui Farm Bureau. They were involved sometime
back in trying to come up with a better definition. They haven't really finalized a good
working definition but they were looking at putting. . .placing some kind of minimum
gross revenue on to their activities and that would sound appropriate to our Department.
You know, the question is, is monitoring the activities, you know, making sure the gross
revenues reported are legitimate. You know, it's not like, you know, they .. .like I think
the Maui Farm Bureau was looking at really a fairly nominal amount of revenue like
$2,500 a year. You know, I could see a lot of loopholes in that. You know, I could buy
$2,500 worth of tangerines with ... from Committee Member Baisa, you know, and she
can buy $2,500 worth ofti leaf from me. So, you know, it's something for all of you to
consider. We would like to have a good sound definition to work with also.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, and maybe we need to look at other definitions within the Code
because we want to be consistent. What is the Zoning Code say about agricultural
consumer, an agricultural farmer, or the definition for agriculture? There's not much
dairy farming left and crop product. .. crop production to me requires another definition.
What does that mean? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Madam Chair, this is a really important thing because I think
there has been much abuse. You know, having two sheep in your front yard barely
qualifies for stock raising or having a few protea in the yard, you know, is not raising a
crop. And so I think this is really an important issue because these folks are entitled to all
kinds of preferential treatment and I think we have to be more specific.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I agree with you, Ms. Baisa. Would it be difficult for the Department to
give us a list of those agricultural consumers who are currently getting an ag rate?
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, it probably is fairly difficult, but I'll look into that for you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you very much. So that's something that's going to take some
time?
MR. ENG: Let me check with our Fiscal Department-CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. ENG: --and see how difficult it will be, but as soon as we can gather that information we'll
report to this body.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Eng. Okay, Members, so that's, that's a definition we're
going to have to work on. And that's really what this first pass through is folks, is things
we know we have to change we can focus in on. Things that are okay we can just skim
right by it and keep on moving.
An applicant means any person applying for water service or additional water service.
And Members, if you have any questions or comments to make, just call out my name or
say Chair because my heads down. I'm going to keep reading through this. If you have a
comment, just shout out.
Application means a request for water service or additional water service.
Board means the Board of Water Supply of the County ofMaui.
Building permit means the official document or certificate issued by the County
authorizing the construction of any structure.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Madam Chair.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: I've always had a problem with that one also because the, the, I
guess any structure - what is a structure? And I've never been able to get a clear
definition. I know Planning has one, Fire Department has another, and the Water always
used a definition for structure. You know, I think some kind of definitive, when you say
the word "any structure", inhabitable structure, business use structure, I don't know, but
some kind of definitive use as a structure because a structure can be a tent. That's a
structure if you want to take it to that extent. So I would like us to see that in that one,
Madam Chair, a more definitive instead of any structure, a definitive structure.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. You know, we'll look at Title 18 on that.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Title 18 has to do with building and ... subdivision and building. So
we'll look at that and see what, what definition they use. Thank you for that. Okay.
Commission means the Commission on Water Resource Management of the State of
Hawaii.
Consolidated meter system means water that is furnished to multiple dwellings through a
centralized or single meter. Now Mr. Kushi has clarified this definition. I don't think he,
he's not changed the meaning or the intent. He's just grammatically improved it, unless
anyone feels otherwise. It used to read consolidated meter system means, means the
means by which water is furnished through a centralized metering system to multiple
consumer units. And he has changed it to say consolidated meter system means water
that is furnished to multiple dwellings through a centralized or single meter.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, classic example would be a condo.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Please. . .. (short pause) . .. What did you say, Mr. Kushi? I guess I
didn't here you right.
MR. KUSHI: A classic example of this would be a condominium.
CHAIR ANDERSON: A condominium. But it. .. what about somebody that has a main
dwelling and then furnishes water from one meter to an ohana unit also. Would that
apply for this definition?
MR. KUSHI: I understand ... my understanding is that the Department would then forward the
ohana ... detached ohana unit would do a fixture count and if the number of fixtures ...
the total number of fixtures of both units are appropriate for one meter, then that's
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okay. If not, you'd have to get a larger meter or another meter.
understanding.

That's my

MR. ENG: Yeah. Madam Chair, that's correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so what's an appropriate number of fixtures for one meter?
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, that varies with the size of the meter. So again our engineers will
take a look at the number of various fixtures and come up with an appropriate
maximum flow rate that the meters can handle and if it needs to be adjusted upward,
then we'll recommend that or even require that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So it's based on the flow rate?
MR. ENG: That's correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And the flow rate is based on the size of the pipes and the size of the
meter?
MR. ENG: Yes, and the amount ofthe-CHAIR ANDERSON: Pressure.
MR. ENG: --demand.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Okay. Consumer means the person, fern ... firm, corporation,
association or governmental department, whether owner or tenant, whose name appears
on the records of the Department as the party responsible and liable for receiving water
service from the Department.
Consumer's supply pipe means the pipe extending from the consumer's end of the
service connection.
Cost of service lateral means the sum of the cost of the labor, materials, meter box,
transportation, equipment and road repair, if any, and other service ... and other charges
necessary for the complete installation of a service lateral, but excluding the cost of the
meter. Is that clear, folks?
Council means the Council of the County ofMaui.
County means the County ofMaui.
Okay. Is this totally brand new or coming from another section - credit?
MR. KUSHI: Coming from another section, Madam Chair.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Credit means the amount of money that an applicant or the
applicant's predecessor in interest has paid or spent for construction, or the amount of
water in gallons an applicant or the applicant's predecessor in interest has developed by
prior agreement with the board or the department, and dedicated to the board or the
department for source development, transmission pipelines, storage tanks, or a
combination of any of the foregoing, which is used to offset the water system
development fee. That clear?
Dedicated water system improvements means water system improvements that are
privately designed and constructed and then accepted by the board or the department
for operation, for which credits shall be applied to all or a portion of the water system
development fee. Accepted by the board, that, that is no longer valid. Is that correct?
MR. KUSHI: You're correct on that one. That should be changed.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay, and then the term for water system improvements, I believe you
left that in on Page 40 ... what was it, 44? On Page 44, there is the original definition of
water system improvements, means any project which will construct facilities to
provide additional source development capacity, additional transmission or distribution
pipeline capacity, or additional storage tank capacity for any of the Board's water
systems. And I guess you took it out but it's ... anyway, it's still there. That's the
definition of water system improvements. Do you have a new definition of that
Mr. Kushi or did you leave that in? Yeah.
On Page 6, Members, the definition for water system improvements means
improvements or developments which will construct facilities to provide additional
source development capacity, additional transmission or distribution pipeline capacity,
or additional storage tank capacity for any of the Department's water systems. Well,
then I got a problem with that Mr. Kushi because you're including source development
in dedicated water system improvements under this definition means water system
improvements that are privately designed and constructed and then accepted by the
board or the department for operation for which credit shall be applied. I believe it was
in the term before last after the, the Charter change was made that the Department came
to the Council and asked the Council to adopt an ordinance allowing the Department to
accept easements for. .. to, in other words, to cut the Council out of the process of
accepting easements for water system facilities and the Council approved it, but they
did not approve source development. In order words, any source development needs to
come to the Council for approval and cannot be automatically adopted or accepted by
the Department. So we're going to have to reword that, unless I'm wrong and you can
correct me on that, Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: I'm somewhat confused, Madam Chair. On Page 6 of my draft, the last definition
is water system improvements.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. KUSHI: It says what it says and on Page 40 ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, wait. Let's stop there, Mr. Kushi. The definition that we're going
to be working on on Page 6 means improvements or developments which will construct
facilities to provide additional source development capacity. And so when you go back
to this definition that we're working on, dedicated water system improvements, that
means dedicating a private system to the County, and this definition allows the
Department to accept the dedication with no oversight by the Council, but the Council,
you know, the Council allowed the Department to accept dedication of easements and
property for system facilities like lines, storage tanks, and as such as that, but not
source development. Source development still needs approval by the Counsel. So
there seems to be a conflict here. Did you follow what I said?
MR. KUSHI: I'm trying to. You lost me.
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, as far as going back to Page 6 on that definition of water system
improvements.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. ENG: That definition just taking it as it is, stand alone, I believe is appropriate. I know that
you're referring to the ... to the powers of the Council-CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. ENG: --and so maybe we may want to address that somewhere else.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, I mean I don't have a problem with the water system
improvements definition, but I have a problem with the way it's, it's referred to in this
dedicated water system improvements definition. Because you're saying that water
system improvements that are privately designed and constructed can be accepted by
the Department and that contradicts the Council's authority to oversee the development
of wells or any kind of source development.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, if! may?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Sure.
MR. KUSHI: Look at the definition of dedicated water system improvements.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's what we're working on.
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MR. KUSHI: Yes. I would suggest that means water system improvements that are privately
designed and constructed and then accepted by the Department pursuant to law for the
operations so and so and so. So it's all in accordance with law. If it fits into Chapter
3.44, Acquisition and Disposition of Properties, so be it. If it doesn't, then it has to
come here.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Well, that's a definition that we'll have to work on, Members.
You know, it's kind of hard. We haven't even gotten into the rules yet to actually
determine how these definitions should read. So, but you know, we gotta also take into
consideration that the Council adopted an ordinance just last year that requires any
agreements between the County and a private source developer have to come to this
body for approval, too. Members, I think we can stop at this point because we're
hitting into lunch and I will take the time between now and our next meeting. I do have
a meeting set up with Mr. Eng. Finally, we get to meet and go over some of this and
see if we can work through some of these definitions and also have staff look and
compare with Title 18. And hopefully, have a chance to meet with Mr. Kushi before
the next meeting so we can tighten up some of these definitions. And in the meantime,
we will also try to consider maybe in a Ramseyer format adding in some of the changes
that has come from DSA so we don't have to be flipping back and forth. Members, any
other questions or comments today? Mr. Eng, you have any comments to make?
MR. ENG: No, I don't.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thanks for being with us today. Appreciate the attention
everyone. This is going to be a long haul and I'll try not to bore you to death. Bring in
some exciting issues along the way so that we're not doing just this. And I just want to
make it real clear, this is critical in how we go forward in water, water development and
management in this County. It will be very easy and I guess I wouldn't need to be very
grown up to just recommend that we adopt what's here already. We don't want to do
that. We want to do this right and the existing rules that are in place still have the force
and effect of law. Any conflict with the Charter, Mr. Kushi I'm sure is addressing
appropriately with the Board. And so I just want to let you know that I don't intend to
rush this through but to work steadily on it until we get it done. We'll look forward to
comments from the Department and we'll look forward to comments from the Board as
we move on this. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kushi for your assistance. I know this has
been tedious work for you and you have you have so many things on your plate and ...
(change tape, start 2A). . . we appreciate it.
Any comments, Members, or
announcements to make?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Maybe if the Department has the
opportunity to go through a little more thoroughly the definitions in itself would help us
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at the next round because it's going to be him who will promulgate the rules. And if
there are questions relative to clarification implementation, he should be able to provide
that kind of information to us as we go through the process in approving it. So that
would really help us to have you take a look at it and somehow just try to work it out how the promulgation of rules will effectuate the Department's ability to actually initiate.
MR. ENG: Thank you, Member Mateo.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Mr. Eng has already... I've ... saw his copy of the draft. He's got
everything highlighted.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And he did mention that the private system that he worked for previously
sort of adopted the same rules that we worked on. So he's familiar with them so I'm
looking for great help from Mr. Eng. Okay, Members, no other comments? Water
Resources Committee meeting of February 12 is now adjourned ... .(gavel) . ..
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